3RD ADDENDUM TO THE MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING & AGREEMENT TO PROVIDE LAW ENFORCEMENT SERVICES

THIS THIRD ADDENDUM is to that Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) entered into on June 18th, 2019 and amended on October 4th, 2022 and May 21st, 2024 by and between the County of Siskiyou, Office of the Sheriff ("County") and City of Dunsmuir ("City") and is entered into on the date when it has been both approved by the Board and signed by all other parties to it.

WHEREAS, the MOU expired on June 30th, 2024 and services continued to be required after that date; and

WHEREAS, the parties desire to extend the term of the MOU;

WHEREAS, the cost of services to be provided under the MOU is expected to exceed the amount provided in the MOU; and

WHEREAS, the parties desire to increase the amount of compensation payable under the MOU.

WHEREAS, the County contacts listed in Section 1 and Section 2 of the MOU needs to be updated;

NOW THEREFORE, THE PARTIES MUTUALLY AGREE AS FOLLOWS:

- 1. Section 4.A., page 2 of the MOU, shall be amended to extend the term of the Contract through **June 30**th, **2025.**
- 2. Exhibit A-1, Section 3, page 1, shall be amended to add fiscal year 2024-2025.
- 3. Exhibit B, Section 1, page 1, add an additional total of Four Hundred Sixteen Thousand Dollars and No Cents (\$416,000.00), increasing the total compensation payable under the MOU to an amount not to exceed Two Million Four Hundred Ninety Six Thousand Dollars and No Cents (\$2,496,000).
- 4. Designated County representative within Section 1, page 1 of the MOU: Jeremiah LaRue, Sheriff-Coroner (530) 842-8300
- County contacts for Notices within Section 2, page 1 of the MOU:
 Courtney Greenley, Administrative Services Manager: Contracts (530) 842-8326
 Elizabeth Johnson, Staff Services Analyst: Billings (530) 842-8315

All other terms and conditions of the Contract shall remain in full force and effect.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, County and City have executed this third addendum to the MOU on the dates set forth below, each signatory represents that he/she has the authority to execute this agreement and to bind the Party on whose behalf his/her execution is made.

COUNTY OF SISKIYOU

| Date: | | | | Nancy Ogren, CHAIR Board of Supervisors County of Siskiyou State of California | |
|--|----------------------------------|-----------------------|---------------|---|--|
| ATTEST LAURA I Clerk, Bo | | ors | | | |
| Ву: | Peputy | | | | |
| | . , | | (| CHFIVE City of Dunsmuir | |
| Date: 6/0 | 5/2025 | | Į | 552E4E006EE44B6 Michael © Clarno, Mayor | |
| 6/6 | /2025 | | | Michae l ©larno, Mayor Blake Miduaelsen | |
| Date: | | | | Blake Michaelsen, Finance Director | |
| | | | | , | |
| License (Licer | | ce with an act prov | iding for | the registration of contractors) | |
| Note to Contractor: For corporations, the contract must be signed by two officers. The first signature must be that of the chairman of the board, president or vice-president; the second signature must be that of the secretary, assistant secretary, chief financial officer or assistant treasurer. (Civ. Code, Sec. 1189 & 1190 and Corps. Code, Sec. 313.) | | | | | |
| TAXPAY | ER I.D. (on file) | | | | |
| ACCOUI Fund 1002 | NTING: Organization 202010 | Account 551400 | Activity | Code (if applicable) | |
| Encumbrance number (if applicable): | | | | | |

If needed for multi-year contracts, please include separate sheet with financial information for each fiscal year.

If not to exceed, include amount not to exceed: \$2,496,000.00

2ND ADDENDUM TO THE MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING & AGREEMENT TO PROVIDE LAW ENFORCEMENT SERVICES

THIS SECOND ADDENDUM is to that Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) entered into on June 18th, 2019 and amended on October 4th, 2022 by and between the County of Siskiyou, Office of the Sheriff ("County") and City of Dunsmuir ("City") and is entered into on the date when it has been both approved by the Board and signed by all other parties to it.

WHEREAS, the MOU expired on June 30th, 2023 and services continued to be required after that date; and

WHEREAS, the parties desire to extend the term of the MOU;

WHEREAS, the cost of services to be provided under the MOU is expected to exceed the amount provided in the MOU; and

WHEREAS, the parties desire to increase the amount of compensation payable under the MOU.

WHEREAS, the County contacts listed in Section 1 and Section 2 of the MOU needs to be updated;

NOW THEREFORE, THE PARTIES MUTUALLY AGREE AS FOLLOWS:

- 1. Section 4.A., page 2 of the MOU, shall be amended to extend the term of the Contract through **June 30**th, **2024**.
- 2. Exhibit A-1, Section 3, page 1, shall be amended to add fiscal year 2023-2024.
- 3. Exhibit B, Section 1, page 1, add an additional total of Four Hundred Sixteen Thousand Dollars and No Cents (\$416,000.00), increasing the total compensation payable under the MOU to an amount not to exceed Two Million and Eighty Thousand Dollars and No Cents (\$2,080,000.00)
- 4. Designated County representative within Section 1, page 1 of the MOU: Jeremiah LaRue, Sheriff-Coroner (530) 842-8300
- County contacts for Notices within Section 2, page 1 of the MOU:
 Courtney Greenley, Administrative Services Manager: Contracts (530) 842-8326
 Elizabeth Johnson, Staff Services Analyst: Billings (530) 842-8315

All other terms and conditions of the Contract shall remain in full force and effect.

each fiscal year.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, County and City have executed this second addendum to the MOU on the dates set forth below, each signatory represents that he/she has the authority to execute this agreement and to bind the Party on whose behalf his/her execution is made.

| | | COUNTY OF SISKIYOU |
|---|-----------------------------------|--|
| Date: 5/21/2024 | | MICHAELEN®KOBSEFF, CHAIR Board of Supervisors County of Siskiyou |
| | | State of California |
| ATTEST: LAURA BYNUM Clerk, Board of Supervis | ors | |
| By: Wendy Winning | <u>zlia</u> m | |
| 5/8/2024 Date: | | CHTP9: 1911 by Dunsmuir 553EAE 066EE 1AB5 |
| 5/7/2024 Date: | | Michaella rno, Mayor Blake Michaelsen |
| Date | | Blake Michaelsen, Finance Director |
| License No.:(Licensed in accordar | nce with an act pro | oviding for the registration of contractors) |
| signature must be that of signature must be that of | the chairman of the secretary, as | contract must be signed by two officers. The first the board, president or vice-president; the second sistant secretary, chief financial officer or assistant nd Corps. Code, Sec. 313.) |
| TAXPAYER I.D. (on file) | | |
| ACCOUNTING: Fund Organization 1002 202010 | Account 551400 | Activity Code (if applicable) |
| Encumbrance number (if | applicable): | |
| If not to exceed, include | amount not to exc | ceed: \$2,080,000.00 |

If needed for multi-year contracts, please include separate sheet with financial information for

1ST ADDENDUM TO THE MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING & AGREEMENT TO PROVIDE LAW ENFORCEMENT SERVICES

THIS FIRST ADDENDUM is to that Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) entered into on June 18th, 2019 by and between the County of Siskiyou, Office of the Sheriff ("County") and City of Dunsmuir ("City") and is entered into on the date when it has been both approved by the Board and signed by all other parties to it.

WHEREAS, the MOU expired on June 30th, 2022 and services continued to be required after that date; and

WHEREAS, the parties desire to extend the term of the MOU;

WHEREAS, the cost of services to be provided under the MOU is expected to exceed the amount provided in the MOU; and

WHEREAS, the parties desire to increase the amount of compensation payable under the MOU.

WHEREAS, the County contacts listed in Section 1 and Section 2 of the MOU needs to be updated;

NOW THEREFORE, THE PARTIES MUTUALLY AGREE AS FOLLOWS:

- 1. Section 4.A., page 2 of the MOU, shall be amended to extend the term of the Contract through **June 30th**, **2023**.
- 2. Exhibit A-1, Section 3, page 1, shall be amended to add fiscal year 2022-2023.
- 3. Exhibit B, Section 1, page 1, add an additional total of Four Hundred Sixteen Thousand Dollars and No Cents (\$416,000.00), increasing the total compensation payable under the MOU to an amount not to exceed One Million Six Hundred Sixty Four Thousand Dollars and No Cents (\$1,664,000.00).
- 4. Designated County representative within Section 1, page 1 of the MOU: Jeremiah LaRue, Sheriff-Coroner (530) 842-8300
- County contacts for Notices within Section 2, page 1 of the MOU:
 Courtney Greenley, Administrative Services Manager: Contracts (530) 842-8326
 Elizabeth Johnson, Fiscal Technician: Billings (530) 842-8315

All other terms and conditions of the Contract shall remain in full force and effect.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, County and City have executed this first addendum to the MOU on the dates set forth below, each signatory represents that he/she has the authority to execute this agreement and to bind the Party on whose behalf his/her execution is made.

| | COUNTY OF SISKIYOU |
|---|---|
| Date: 1014 2022 | BRANDON A. CRISS, CHAIR Board of Supervisors County of Siskiyou State of California |
| ATTEST: LAURA BYNUM Clerk, Board of Supervisors By: Deputy | CITY: <u>City of Dunsmuir</u> |
| Date: | |
| Date: | Matthew Bryan, Mayor Dustin Rief, City Manager |
| License No.:(Licensed in accordance with an act prov | iding for the registration of contractors) |
| signature must be that of the chairman of the | ntract must be signed by two officers. The first board, president or vice-president; the second stant secretary, chief financial officer or assistant I Corps. Code, Sec. 313.) |
| TAXPAYER I.D. | |
| ACCOUNTING: Fund Organization Account 1002 202010 551400 | Activity Code (if applicable) |
| Encumbrance number (if applicable): | |
| If not to exceed, include amount not to excee | ed: \$1,664,000.00 |
| If needed for multi-year contracts, please inceach fiscal year. | clude separate sheet with financial information for |

Memorandum of Understanding

Agreement to Provide Law Enforcement Services

Between

County of Siskiyou

and

City of Dunsmuir

July 1, 2019 – through – June 30, 2022

Table of Contents

Face Page

Table of Contents

MOU (6 Pages – Including Signature Page + Accounting)

Exhibit "A" - Scope of Services (5 Pages)

Exhibit "A-1" - Staffing / Operations Plan (3 Pages)

Exhibit "A-2" - City "Police Ordinances (4 Pages)

Exhibit "B" - Payment Methodology (3 Pages)

Exhibit "C" - Special Indemnification & Insurance Provisions (2 Pages)

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING

FOR LAW ENFORCEMENT SERVICES TO THE CITY OF DUNSMUIR

BY THE SISKIYOU COUNTY SHERIFF'S OFFICE

THIS MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING, (MOU) is made by and between the County of Siskiyou, Office of the Sheriff, a political subdivision of the State of California (hereafter called COUNTY) and the City of Dunsmuir an incorporated city having its principal place of business at 5915 Dunsmuir Avenue, Dunsmuir CA 96025 (hereafter called CITY). Wherein COUNTY agrees to provide and CITY agrees to accept the services specified herein.

The CITY has requested COUNTY, through the Office of the Sheriff, to provide law enforcement services as specified in "Exhibit A" (Scope of Services) "Exhibit A-1," and "Exhibit A-2" pursuant to this MOU:

The COUNTY, through the Office of the Sheriff, has expressed willingness to provide law enforcement services pursuant to this MOU as authorized by California Government Code sections 6500 et seq. and 51300 et seq.

In consideration of the mutual covenants and conditions contained herein, the parties agree as follows:

1. **DESIGNATED REPRESENTATIVES.** The below listed persons have been designated as authorized representatives for this MOU:

COUNTY:

Captain, Karl Houtman -

(530) 842-8311

Siskiyou County Sheriff's Office, 305 Butte Street, Yreka CA 96097

CITY:

Randy Johnsen, City Manager - (530) 235-4822 ext. #103

City of Dunsmuir, 5915 Dunsmuir Ave., Dunsmuir, CA 96025

2. **NOTICES.** Any notice or consent required or permitted to be given under this MOU shall be given to the respective parties in writing, by first class mail, postage prepaid, or otherwise delivered as follows:

To COUNTY: Sheriff Jon E. Lopey, 305 Butte St., Yreka CA 96097

To CITY: Randy Johnsen, City Manager, 5915 Dunsmuir Ave., Dunsmuir, CA 96025

3. SCOPE OF SERVICES. COUNTY agrees to provide law enforcement services to CITY in accordance and/or as specified in "Exhibit A", "Exhibit A-1" and "Exhibit A-2" attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference. CITY shall compensate COUNTY in the amount indicated in "Exhibit B" attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference; payments shall be based on actuals quarterly. COUNTY shall invoice quarterly. Payments shall be made, in full, within thirty (30) days of invoice receipt.

4. TERM.

- A. <u>Basic Term.</u> The term of this MOU shall commence July 1, 2019, and continue through June 30, 2022, unless terminated sooner pursuant to item #12 in this MOU, or extended as described in item 4(B).
- **B**. Extended Term. The term of this MOU may be extended for successive periods of one (1) year if the legislative body of both parties determines to so extend the term and written notice of such renewal is given to the other party at least three (3) months prior to the expiration. Extended terms shall be referred to as First Extended, Second Extend Term, et cetera.
- C. <u>Appropriations Limitations:</u> CITY and COUNTY each acknowledge that annual budgetary appropriations in future years for payment and services hereunder are subject to the approval of their respective legislative bodies.
- 5. STANDARD OF PERFORMANCE. COUNTY represents that it has the skills and expertise necessary to perform the law enforcement services required under this MOU and that all persons employed in the performance of such services for the CITY shall be COUNTY employees. Other than the compensation hereinabove provided for, CITY shall not be called upon to assume any liability for the direct payment of salaries, wages, or other compensation to any COUNTY personnel performing services hereunder for CITY.
- 6. <u>INDEMNIFICATION AND INSURANCE</u>. CITY and COUNTY agree to defend, indemnify and save harmless the other party for the negligence of its officers, employees, and agents acting within the scope of this Agreement and to procure and maintain insurance in accordance with the provisions of "Exhibit C," attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference.
- 7. <u>OWNERSHIP OF EQUIPMENT</u>. COUNTY shall be the owner of all items incidental to the performance of this MOU. No transfer of ownership of equipment neither from COUNTY to the CITY nor from CITY to the COUNTY shall occur as a result of this MOU.
- **8.** <u>INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR</u>. It is expressly understood between the parties to this MOU that no employer/employee relationship is intended; the relationship of COUNTY to CITY is that of an independent contractor and CITY and COUNTY retain sole and independent liability for the actions of the employees of each.
- 9. <u>NON-DISCRIMINATION</u>. COUNTY hereby notifies CITY that COUNTY's policies prohibiting discrimination (2.1 et seq. Siskiyou County Personnel Policies) apply to this MOU and are incorporated herein by this reference with the same force and effect as if these policies were specifically set out herein and CITY agrees to comply with these same/referred policies.
- 10. NON-EXCLUSIVE AGREEMENT. CITY understand that this is not an exclusive agreement (MOU) and that COUNTY shall have the right to negotiate with and enter into MOU's, Contracts, Agreement, etc. with other Siskiyou County cities and/or other agencies to provide the same or similar services.
- 11. <u>ASSIGNMENT</u>. CITY shall not assign any of its rights nor transfer any of its obligations under this MOU without the prior written consent of COUNTY and any attempt to so assign or so transfer without consent shall be void and without legal effect and shall constitute grounds for termination.

12. TERMINATION.

- A. <u>By COUNTY</u>: COUNTY may, by written notice to CITY, terminate this MOU in whole or in part at any time, whether for the COUNTY's convenience or because of the failure of CITY to fulfill the obligations as set forth herein.
- 1. For Convenience. COUNTY may terminate this MOU upon ninety (90) days written notice. Upon the date of termination, COUNTY shall cease work and notify CITY as to the status of its performance.
- 2. For Cause. Should CITY default in the performance of this MOU or materially breach any of its provisions, COUNTY may, at COUNTY's sole option, terminate this MOU by written notice which shall be effective upon receipt by CITY.
- B. <u>By CITY:</u> CITY, may, by written notice to COUNTY, terminate this agreement in whole or in part at any time, whether for CITY's convenience or because of the failure of COUNTY to fulfill the obligations set forth herein.
- 1. For Convenience. CITY may terminate this MOU upon ninety (90) days written notice. COUNTY shall be entitled to payment for services rendered through the termination date.
- 2. For Cause. Should COUNTY fail to provide CITY all or any part of the services set forth in "Exhibit A", "Exhibit "A-1" and "Exhibit A-2" CITY may, at CITY's option, terminate this agreement by written notice, which shall be in effect upon receipt by COUNTY.

Notwithstanding any other payment provision of this MOU, CITY shall pay COUNTY for services performed to the date of termination.

- 13. <u>SECTION HEADINGS.</u> The headings of several sections, and any table of contents appended hereto, shall be solely for convenience of reference and shall not affect the meaning, construction, or effect hereof.
- SEVERABILITY. If any one or more of the provisions contained herein shall for any reason be held to be invalid, illegal of unenforceable in any respect, then such provision or provisions shall be deemed severable from the remaining provisions hereof, and such invalidity, illegality or unenforceability shall not affect any other provision hereof, and this MOU shall be construed as if such invalid, illegal, or unenforceable provision had never been contained herein.
- 15. **REMEDIES NOT EXCLUSIVE.** No remedy herein conferred upon or reserved to the CITY or the COUNTY is intended to be exclusive of any other remedy or remedies, and each and every such remedy, to the extent permitted by law, shall be cumulative and in addition to any other remedy given hereunder or now or hereafter existing at law or in equity or otherwise.
- **16. TIME IS OF THE ESSENCE.** Time is of the essence in this MOU and each covenant and term is a condition herein.
- 17. No delay or omission of COUNTY to exercise any right or power arising upon the occurrence of any event of default shall impair any such right or power or shall be construed to be a waiver of any such default or an acquiescence therein; and every power and

remedy given by this MOU to COUNTY shall be exercised from time to time and as often as may be deemed expedient in the sole discretion of COUNTY.

- 18. ENTIRE AGREEMENT/MOU AND AMENDMENT. In conjunction with the matters considered herein, this MOU contains the entire understanding and agreement of the parties and there have been no promises, representations, agreements, warranties or undertakings by any of the parties, either oral or written, of any character or nature hereafter binding except as set forth herein. This MOU may be altered, amended or modified only by an instrument in writing, executed by the parties to this MOU and by no other means. Each party waives its future claim, contest or assert that this MOU was modified, canceled, superseded, or changed by any oral agreements, course of conduct, waiver or estoppel.
- 19. <u>SUCCESSOR AND ASSIGNS.</u> All representatives, covenants and warranties set forth in this MOU, by or on behalf of, or for the benefit of any or all of the parties hereto, shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of such party, its successors and assigns.
- **20.** COMPLIANCE WITH LAW. CITY and COUNTY shall, at the sole cost and expense of each entity, comply with all County, State, and Federal ordinances, regulations and/or statutes now in force or which may hereafter be in force with regard to the MOU. The judgment of any court of competent jurisdiction, or the admission of CITY or COUNTY in any action or proceeding against either, whether either party thereto or not, that CITY or COUNTY has violated any such ordinance, regulation and/or statue, shall be conclusive of the fact as between CITY and COUNTY.
- **21.** CALIFORNIA LAW. This MOU shall be governed by the laws of the State of California.
- **EXECUTION OF COUNTERPARTS.** This MOU may be executed in any number of counterparts and each of such counterparts shall for all purposes be deemed to be an original; and all such counterparts, or as many of them as the parties shall preserve undestroyed, shall together constitute one and the same instrument.
- **AUTHORITY.** All parties to this MOU warrant and represent that they have the power and authority to enter into this agreement in the names, titles and capacities herein state and on behalf of any entities, persons, or firms, represented or purported to be represented by such entity (ies), person(s), or firm(s) and that all formal requirements necessary or required by and state and/or federal law in order to enter into this MOU have been fully complied with. Furthermore, by entering into this MOU, CITY hereby warrants that it shall not have breached the terms or conditions of any other contract or agreement to which CITY is obligated, which breach would have a material effect hereon.
- **24. PRECEDENCE.** In the event of conflict between the provisions contained in the numbered section of this MOU and the provisions contained in the Exhibits shall prevail over those in the numbered sections. In the event of conflict between the provisions contained in the numbered sections of this MOU, "Exhibit A," "Exhibit A-1" and subsequent amendments, the most current MOU and/or Amendment shall prevail over the provisions, Exhibits, and/or prior Amendments.

//

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, County and Contractor have executed this agreement on the dates set forth below, each signatory represents that he/she has the authority to execute this agreement and to bind the Party on whose behalf his/her execution is made.

COUNTY OF SISKIYOU

| Date: 7/9/19 | Brandon A. Cruss BRANDON A. CRISS, CHAIR Board of Supervisors County of Siskiyou State of California | | |
|---|--|--|--|
| ATTEST: LAURA BYNUM Clerk, Board of Supervisors By: | | | |
| Date: 6/11/2019 | JULIANA LUCCHESI, MAYOR | | |
| Date: 6-11-2019 | RANDY JOHNSEN, CITY MANAGER | | |
| License No.: (Licensed in accordance with an act providing for | or the registration of contractors) | | |
| Note to Contractor: For corporations, the contract must be sign the chairman of the board, president or vice-president; the sec secretary, chief financial officer or assistant treasurer. (Civ. Co | cond signature must be that of the secretary, assistant | | |
| TAXPAYER I.D | | | |
| ACCOUNTING: Fund Organization Account Activity Code 1002 202010 551400 | e (if applicable) | | |
| Encumbrance number (if applicable) | | | |
| If not to exceed, include amount not to exceed: \$1,248,000.00 (One Million Two Hundred Forty Eight Thousand and no cents) | | | |

information for each fiscal year.

If needed for multi-year contracts, please include separate sheet with financial

| FY 19/20 1002-202010-551400 | NTE \$416,000.00 |
|-----------------------------|------------------|
| FY 20/21 1002-202010-551400 | NTE \$416,000.00 |
| FY 21/22 1002-202010-551400 | NTE \$416,000.00 |

Exhibit "A" – Scope of Services

1. Delivery of Services.

The COUNTY, through the Office of the Sheriff, shall deliver General Law Enforcement Services within the incorporated limits of the City of DUNSMUIR according to the terms and conditions set forth herein. It is the mission of the Sheriff's Office to provide a high level of professional excellence; respond to calls for service promptly; protect lives and property to the best of its ability; initiate and maintain crime prevention programs and apprehend criminal offenders.

2. General Law Enforcement Services

- A. <u>General Services.</u> The COUNTY agrees to provide general law enforcement services for CITY, as specified herein, which includes, police patrol; detective units and investigations; all auxiliary and technical services; direct supervision, support, and administrative functions; Dispatch; general traffic enforcement, accident investigation, and parking violation enforcement. Services may also include license inspection and enforcement, and any other necessary services in the field of public safety. Services provided shall not include animal control functions or enforcement of animal control ordinances.
 - 1. <u>Labor, Equipment and Materials.</u> COUNTY shall furnish and supply all necessary labor, supervision, equipment, communication facilities, and supplies necessary to perform all duties and functions to maintain the level of service to be rendered hereunder. Notwithstanding anything contained herein, in all instances where special supplies, stationary, notices, forms and the like must be issued in the name of CITY, the same shall be supplied by CITY at CITY'S cost and expense.
 - 2. <u>Prosecution of Offenses.</u> The CITY and COUNTY shall continue their existing practice regarding prosecution of offenses, with CITY responsible for prosecution and/or administering parking citations and City Ordinances, and COUNTY, through the County's District Attorney's Office, is responsible for the prosecution of all other offenses. There shall be no cost effect on the parties under this Section.
 - 3. <u>Custody and Coroner Functions.</u> Under current law, conventional custody and Coroner functions are provided by the COUNTY's obligation and expense throughout the County of Siskiyou regardless of incorporated or unincorporated boundaries. Coroner functions include toxicology lab test. Therefore, the CITY will not be involved with the cost of Custody or Coroner services.

B. Level of Service.

1. <u>COUNTY Recommendation.</u> The level of service as per Exhibit A-1, workplace and/or geographical boundaries for law enforcement services to the CITY will be recommended by the COUNTY in advance of the application period(s) of

implementation, and no less than annually thereafter. The level of service refers to the sum of the direct staffing plan, support functions, equipment, capital structures, major assets, services, supplies, and other incidental costs attributable to the provisions of basic law enforcement services with the then current geographic boundaries of the City of DUNSMUIR. The direct staffing plan is incorporated into this Agreement as Exhibit A-1 and will be reviewed at least annually for the applicable time period. In consultation with the CITY, the CITY may enhance the level of law enforcement services as defined under Exhibit "B," Section 3. "Supplemental Law Enforcement Services." Under no circumstance will existing service levels be reduced unless upon mutual agreement by CITY and COUNTY.

COUNTY and CITY may participate in CITY'S monthly Council meeting and discuss "Public Safety issues." These meetings may be held monthly or more frequently as required. This meeting may consist of at least the following: CITY Clerk or his/her designee, two CITY Council Members, CITY Code Enforcement or his/her designee, COUNTY Sheriff's Office Supervisor or his/her designee. The purpose of this meeting will facilitate timely review and discussion of enforcement issues and other public safety concerns.

- 2. <u>No CITY Modification.</u> In the event the CITY does not wish to modify the then-existing type or level of staffing provided under the terms of this MOU, no action need be taken by CITY or COUNTY and the then existing type or level of staffing shall continue unchanged until a written request is made pursuant to this Section or otherwise modified pursuant to the terms of this MOU.
- 3. <u>Cost Computation.</u> COUNTY'S computation of costs shall be consistent with the provisions referred to in Exhibit B. Any disputes regarding the computation of costs under this Section shall be resolved by mutual agreement by both parties. The CITY shall receive written notice annually in September of any anticipated increases to this MOU as to provide time for preliminary budget creation with the specific type and level of staffing and assess budgetary impacts for the succeeding year.
- C. <u>Specialized Law Enforcement Functions</u>. Specialized law enforcement functions, such as: K-9; Search & Rescue (SAR); Hostage Negotiations; Special Response Team (SWAT/SRT); Dive Team; Hazardous Devices Team; Professional Standards (Internal Affairs Investigations); Major Crimes Investigations; Forensic Evidence Collection/Processing; Special Investigations Unit (Intelligence Gathering); Crime/Gang Intelligence Unit; and DARE, Neighborhood Watch, and other Crime Prevention Program administration may also be provided within the City Limits as needed.
- D. <u>Service Limitations of COUNTY.</u> All references to General Law Enforcement Services contained in this MOU are references only to services that shall be delivered under the terms of this MOU.

3. Supplemental Law Enforcement Services

A. Additional Levels of Service.

- 1. <u>Definition.</u> Additional Level(s) of Service refers to supplemental or enhancements to law enforcement services not included in, "General Law Enforcement Services," as defined in Section #2 above. CITY recognizes that additional levels of service such as, but not limited to: additional security for special events, responses to natural disasters, CITY imposed enterprises, etc. may exceed previously defined general law enforcement services. These are examples of planned and/or unplanned events usually requiring supplemental, short-term law enforcement services.
- 2. <u>Response.</u> COUNTY will respond with additional levels of law enforcement service determined by the COUNTY.
- 3. City Cost. The COUNTY will provide additional levels of law enforcement service as described in Section 3(A)(1) at regular rate to the CITY if and when it is capable of doing so. This will first be accomplished using existing staff during regular scheduled work hours if/when such services would not unreasonably interfere with the Sheriff Office's general law enforcement services to the unincorporated portions of the County and/or by requesting/using neighboring law enforcement service agencies through mutual aid. The procedures set forth herein are designed to keep CITY'S costs to a minimum and are consistent with current practices. Any additional services requiring overtime will be at the overtime rate specified in Exhibit "B," Section 3(B).

4. Personnel Management.

A. <u>Hiring, Training and Discipline of Staff.</u> The hiring, training, discipline and/or control of all Sheriff's Office personnel employed under this MOU shall remain under the appropriate chain-of-command within the department. CITY may provide input in the assignment and transfer of COUNTY Sheriff's Office personnel; however, the Sheriff has the ultimate authority on the assignments of Sheriff's Office personnel.

COUNTY Sheriff shall appoint and/or designate a Supervisor, as CITY Police Chief. CITY may provide input to the Sheriff for his consideration for CITY Police Chief and may also provide input on the CITY Police Chief evaluations. All persons employed in the performance of services and functions for CITY pursuant to this MOU shall be COUNTY employees.

B. <u>Exclusive Authority.</u> Subject to the terms of this MOU, the Sheriff shall retain exclusive authority over the activities of his/her personnel. The planning, organization, scheduling, direction, supervision, standards of performance and discipline of Sheriff's personnel, and all other related matters incidental to the delivery of General Law

Enforcement Services to the CITY shall be as determined by the Sheriff. Nothing herein shall be deemed to limit the Sheriff's authority to move, transfer and/or discipline Sheriff's Office personnel as the Sheriff's discretion deems appropriate.

C. <u>City Recommendations/Input.</u> CITY may provide input and recommendations on the assignment and transfer of personnel as a consequence of services and functions performed under this MOU, and such recommendations shall be considered in good faith by the Sheriff in determining the appropriate course of action, if any. CITY will also be allowed to provide information to the CITY Police Chief in his/her preparation of COUNTY personnel providing services under this MOU.

CITY may provide input based on general citizen concerns, setting performance measures, and identify goals and objectives through direct communication based on open and honest dialogue between CITY and COUNTY. CITY Police Chief will attend CITY Public Safety meetings and CITY Council meetings to facilitate this function.

- D. <u>Employee Pay Issues.</u> City shall not assume any liability for the direct payment of any salaries, wages, or other compensation to any COUNTY personnel performing services hereunder for CITY. Except as otherwise specified herein, CITY shall not be liable for Workers' Compensation claims or indemnity to any COUNTY employee for injury or sickness arising out of his or her employment with the COUNTY. Except as otherwise provided herein, no person employed by COUNTY hereunder shall have any rights to pension, civil service, or other status or right from CITY by virtue of this MOU; and no CITY employee shall have any rights to pension, civil service or other status or right from the COUNTY by virtue of this MOU.
- E. <u>Orientation/Training.</u> Personnel assigned to CITY pursuant to the terms of the MOU shall receive appropriate orientation on procedures, special characteristics, and needs of CITY. CITY may provide guidance on this orientation.

5. Enforcement of State and Municipal Laws.

The Sheriff's Office shall enforce the statutes of the State of California and the municipal polices ordinances of the City of DUNSMUIR. The enforcement of such municipal police ordinances shall be in connection with the performance of the Sheriff Office's law enforcement functions within the boundaries of the City of DUNSMUIR.

6. Mutual Cooperation.

To facilitate the delivery of services under this MOU, COUNTY shall have full cooperation and assistance from CITY, its officers, agents and employees and the CITY shall have full cooperation and assistance from COUNTY, its officers, agents and employees. County Sheriff shall give prompt consideration and make every effort to comply with all requests regarding the delivery of law enforcement services.

7. Maintenance of Records

COUNTY shall keep reasonably itemized and detailed records and reports as required by law, grants and/or generally accepted accounting principles on behalf of CITY. Each COUNTY employee performing services for CITY shall record activities attributed to the City of DUNSMUIR. CITY understands and accepts that various records may be destroyed after specific time periods have passed and thus may be unavailable.

8. Monthly and Annual Reports.

Within fifteen (15) days after the end of each calendar month, COUNTY shall provide CITY a monthly report of law enforcement service statistics. COUNTY further shall provide CITY an "annual report" due to the CITY February 1ST of each following year and placed on the next available City Council Agenda in February. COUNTY and CITY may work together on modifying the format and content of these reports as needed and when practical.

Exhibit "A-1" – Staffing / Operations Plan

1. General Law Enforcement Services: (Minimum Level of Staffing)

The COUNTY will provide a total of 5,280 man hours annually; which includes supervision; (Department Supervisor/CITY Police Chief). The Supervisor/Sergeant or Corporal, and other department administration, will provide administrative duties and shift coverage. (Refer to section 5B)

2. Man Hours: (Minimum Level)

Total = 5,280 (Annual -5,280 hours of coverage)

3. Cost:

Fiscal Year 2019-2020 = NTE § 396,000.00 + overtime as specified in Exhibit "B," Section 3.

Fiscal Year 2020-2021 = NTE \$ 396,000.00 + overtime as specified in Exhibit "B," Section 3.

Fiscal Year 2021-2022 = NTE **§ 396,000.00** + overtime as specified in Exhibit "B," Section 3.

4. Facility:

A. <u>Assignment/Location</u>: All personnel assigned to provide services to CITY under this MOU will work from the main Sheriff's Substation in DUNSMUIR or be dispatched from the closest Sheriff's Office/Substation.

5. Scheduling:

- A. <u>Span of Coverage</u>: The CITY Police Chief (Sergeant or Corporal/Supervisor) will schedule personnel to minimize any lapse of service and the necessity for having to call-out personnel.
- B. <u>Miscellaneous Deployment:</u> The CITY Police Chief and/or COUNTY will have discretion to schedule personnel as necessary to best address crime suppression, officer and public safety, and other activities as required. CITY may also provide input in areas requiring additional deployment.
- C. <u>Deployment</u>: As described in item #4, section "C," second paragraph in "Exhibit A," CITY Police Chief will attend CITY "Public Safety Meetings," (which should only

involve one and no more than two City Council Member as designated by the CITY COUNCIL), and monthly CITY Council Meetings as required, CITY to provide input on public safety and deployment, i.e., community awareness programs, school patrols, parolee and sex offender checks, park and other security checks, special events, etc.

D. Call Type:

- 1. Priority 1: In-progress call with the possibility of harm to people and/or property. Examples include: Domestic Disturbances, burglaries in progress, fighting, assaults/batteries, etc. Priority 1 calls would require a call-out if no personnel were on-duty and/or available to respond.
- 2. Priority 2: Urgent calls requiring a response, but not an emergency (threat to life or property). Examples include: Domestic or other disturbances where the parties are separated; crimes where there is potential of recurrence, escalation, or loss of evidence. Priority 2 calls may require a call-out if no personnel were onduty and/or available.
- 3. Priority 3: Non-urgent calls where there is no risk to life or property, no risk of losing evidence, typically non-criminal incidents. Priority 3 calls will not usually require a call-out and will be referred to the first available personnel assigned to DUNSMUIR.
- E. <u>Call-outs/Extended Shifts/Additional Over-time</u>: CITY recognizes that there are circumstances and functions associated with providing law enforcement services to the CITY that require personnel to work beyond designated shifts, such as call-outs during non-covered times; extended shifts to transport prisoners, writing in-custody crime reports, attending court appearances and hearings related to CITY calls/business; extended emergency calls and/or Priority 1 and Priority 2 calls as describe in Section D (above); court appearances, etc.
 - 1. Additional Personnel/Assistance: Priority 1 and Priority 2 calls may require a minimum of two deputies/officers.

COUNTY agrees to implement procedures to minimize overtime and attempt to use existing staff during regular scheduled work hours if/when such services would not unreasonably interfere with the Sheriff Office's general law enforcement services to the unincorporated portions of the County; by requesting/using neighboring law enforcement service agencies through mutual aid. Call-outs will be made at the discretion of COUNTY based on priority, urgency, and consistent with current practices.

F. Billing:

- 1. General Billing: Over-time for CITY related calls or law enforcement services will be billed to CITY quarterly, in addition to General Law Enforcement Services as specified in "Exhibit B." The billing will include the date, time of call, type of call, (i.e. Disturbance, Domestic Dispute, Assault & Battery, Report Writing, Prisoner Transport, etc.), activity, and a case number if applicable, for identification, tracking, and future deployment analysis.
- 2. Other Law Enforcement Agencies: The COUNTY makes no guarantees regarding the ability to negotiate services from other law enforcement agencies on behalf of the CITY.

6. Calls for Service Outside of CITY LIMITS:

- A. <u>Call-Type:</u> CITY and COUNTY agree that personnel assigned to work during CITY designated shifts may be dispatched to leave CITY limits. This includes, but is not limited to the following circumstances:
 - 1. Investigation of CITY related crimes and incidents
 - 2. Security Check(s) of/on CITY property, e.g. Airport
 - 3. Transportation of prisoner(s)
 - 4. Priority 1 calls
 - 5. Priority 2 calls
 - 6. Court appearances
 - 7. Training
 - 8. Collateral Assignments
- B. <u>Coverage</u>: The COUNTY will attempt to minimize use and the duration of personnel assigned to CITY for calls and/or assignments. COUNTY will also attempt to provide coverage to CITY during these incidents. Coverage may include placing personnel on telephonic stand-by, assigning other on-duty personnel to cover CITY, etc.
- C. <u>In-kind Services:</u> COUNTY will provide in kind services, as described herein, i.e., back-up and/or primary for Priority 1 and Priority 2 Calls in CITY limits, additional patrol, etc.
- D. <u>Authorization:</u> Calls and/or circumstances outside of the greater Dunsmuir area requiring the use of personnel assigned to CITY will require the authorization of COUNTY Duty Commander, Watch Commander or Officer-in-Charge (OIC). The COUNTY Commander will see that coverage is maintained as necessary.

EXHIBIT "A-2"

City of Dunsmuir Municipal Codes enforced by SCSO

10.04.010 PARKING RESTRICTIONS:

- A- Red Zones
- **B- Yellow Zones**
- C (1)(2)- White Zones
- **D- Green Zones**
- E- Blue Zones
- F- Seventy Two (72) hour Zones
- G- No Parking Zones
- G(1)- On either side of any street between the projected property lines of any public walk, public step, street or thoroughfare terminating at such street, when such area is indicated by appropriate signs or by red paint upon the curb surface.
- G(2)- In any area where the public works director determines that the parking or stopping of a vehicle would constitute a traffic hazard, or would endanger life or property, when such area is indicated by appropriate signs or red paint upon the curb surface.
- G(3)- In any area established by resolution of the council as a no parking area, when such area is indicated by appropriate signs or by red paint upon the curb surface.
- G(4)- Upon, along or across any railway track in such manner as to hinder, delay or obstruct the movement of any car traveling upon such track.
- G(5)- In any area where the parking or stopping of any vehicle would constitute a traffic hazard or would endanger life or property.
- G(6)- (abbv) On any street or highway where the use of such a street or highway or a portion thereof is necessary for cleaning, repair or construction.
- G(7)- At any place within twenty(20) feet of a crosswalk at an intersection in any business district when such place is indicated by appropriate signs or by red paint upon the curb surface except at a bus stop at a designated bus stop.

G(8)- (abbv)In three-hour parking zones from four a.m. to six a.m. on Tuesdays and Fridays, except holidays, or time reserved for street sweeping.

Dunsmuir Municipal Codes enforced by SCSO

10.04.010 PARKING RESTRICTIONS:

- H- Parking on grades in excess of 3% without blocking wheels of said vehicle by turning them against the curb.
- I- Parking for advertising
- J- Repairs on street
- K- Snow parking
- L- 12 hour maximum parking in city lot.

10.08.010 PARKING

- A- 2 Hour Zones
- D- 3 Hour Zones

10.24.020 OPERATION RESTRICTIONS IN THE BUSINESS DISTRICT

- A- Riding on sidewalk, no person shall ride a bicycle upon any sidewalk or walkway within the city.
- B- Passengers. No person shall ride any bicycle or toy vehicle upon any public right-of-way while carrying a passenger unless such bicycle or toy vehicle has been specifically built to carry such a passenger.
- F- Parking. No person shall park any bicycle or toy vehicle upon any public right-of-way so as to in any way present an obstruction or a hazard to any pedestrian, traffic, vehicle or property.
- H- Toy Vehicles on Business District Streets. No person shall ride a toy vehicle within the business district of Dunsmuir on any roadway.

11.08.080 Operation of Vehicles, Bicycle or Skateboards-prohibited acts.

A-Fail to comply with all applicable provisions of the vehicle code of the State of California.

B- Fail to obey all Sheriff's Officers, park or city employees who are hereinafter instructed to direct traffic whenever and wherever needed in accordance with the provision of these

regulation and such supplementary regulation as may be issued subsequently by the district or City Administrator.

Dunsmuir Municipal Codes enforced by SCSO

11.08.080 Operation of Vehicles, Bicycle or Skateboards-prohibited acts.

- C- Fail to observe all traffic signs indicating speed, direction, caution, stopping, or parking and all others posted for proper control and to safeguard life and property.
- D- Ride or drive a vehicle in at a rate of speed exceeding (10) ten miles per hour.
- E- Operate a vehicle in an area other than park roads and parking areas, nor park a vehicle in other than a designated roadway temporary parking area without written permission from the district or City Administrator.
- F- Ride or operate any skateboard or toy vehicle in any city park (See Section 10.24.020)

9.04.010 Areas where Loitering for unlawful purposes is prohibited.

- 1- Dunsmuir Avenue extending from the north side of Spruce Street to the South side of Oak Street.
- 2- The municipal parking lot on the East side of Dunsmuir Avenue lying to the North of Spruce Street.
- 3- Pine Street extending from the West side of Casle Avenue to the East side of Sacramento Avenue.
- 4- Sacramento Avenue extending from the North side of Willow Street to the South side of Oak Street.
- 5- The City Park facility located at 4835 Dunsmuir Ave.

9.04.020 LOITERING FOR UNLAWFUL PURPOSES

Within the areas designated in Section 9.04.010. It is unlawful for any person to loiter for the purpose of engaging in any of the unlawful acts enumerated in Section 9.04.030.

9.12.020 Curfew-Minors. A- (abbv)lt shall be unlawful for any person under the age of (18) eighteen years to loiter, wander, stroll, or play in or upon the public streets, highways, roads, alleys, parks, playgrounds or other public grounds, public place and public buildings, vacant lots or other unsupervised place between the hours of 10:00 p.m. and 5:00 a.m. of the following

day. On Friday's and Saturday's evenings the curfew shall apply only from 12:00 midnight to 5:00 a.m. the following day.

Dunsmuir Municipal Codes enforced by SCSO

9.12.020 Curfew-Minors.

B- Every parent, guardian or other person having legal care, custody or control of any person under the age (18) years who permits such person to violate the provisions of this chapter is guilty of an infraction.

9.12.040 Drinking on streets, highways, sidewalks or alleys.

A- No person shall drink any beer, wine or any other intoxicating beverage, while said person is on any street, highway, sidewalk or alley, within the city limits of the city.

B- The only exception to this section shall be within an enclosure, during an officially proclaimed city celebration, and shall be limited to beer and/or wine, served or sold under a liquor license, which must be approved by the city council.

*This list of CITY Ordinances may not be inclusive as the CITY and COUNTY may determine additional ordinances will be enforced and determined to be "Public Safety Ordinances."

g:\share\sheriff\city mou's\Dunsmuir - mou exhibit "A-2" (LE Services - final 9_28_15).doc

Exhibit "B" – Payment Methodology

The purpose of Exhibit B is to address contract fiscal issues.

1. General Compensation

In consideration for the services to be performed by COUNTY, CITY agrees to pay COUNTY in proportion to services satisfactorily performed as specified in Exhibit "A-1," Section 3, the not to exceed amount of (Three Hundred Ninety-Six Thousand Dollars and no/100's) \$396,000.00 annually for General Law Enforcement Services detailed in Exhibit "A," Section 2. An additional amount not to exceed (Twenty Thousand and no/100) \$20,000.00 annually for Supplemental Law Enforcement Services as detailed in Exhibit "A," Section 3. This results in a total not exceed amount of (Four Hundred Sixteen Thousand Dollars and no/100's) \$416,000.00, per fiscal year.

Total costs for services performed will be based on actual time worked. The COUNTY will use an Indirect Cost Rate Proposal (ICRP) rate that includes direct and indirect costs. The ICRP is developed using OMB (the United States Office of Management and Budgets) guidelines. The rate is calculated annually in September by the COUNTY Auditor-Controller in conjunction with the Siskiyou County Sheriff. This is the rate that will be used each fiscal year.

2. Annual Recomputation of Compensation

- A. Recomputation of General Law Enforcement Services. Except as otherwise specified hereafter, the total amount charged for General Law Enforcement Services as defined in Exhibit A-1(3) is agreed upon by both parties.
- B. Material Changes to Service Level. In the event that the CITY desires to modify then-existing type or level of staffing provided under the terms of this MOU, in addition to other procedures set forth in this agreement, the CITY will make a written request to the COUNTY for changes to be applied to the succeeding fiscal year. The CITY'S request shall detail the specific type and level of staffing the CITY desires, with the CITY acknowledging that the costs of such services may impact the total, negotiated amount for the relevant fiscal year. COUNTY shall review said annual request within thirty (30) days of COUNTY'S receipt thereof and acknowledge acceptance or rejection by letter to the CITY'S Designate Representative.

COUNTY reserves the right and responsibility to maintain a minimum advisable level of service throughout the unincorporated and contract areas. Upon notice from COUNTY of acceptance or partial acceptance of said annual request, and the cost of providing the type or level of staffing therein agreed upon, the parties shall prepare and execute a written amendment to this MOU as to the terms and conditions set forth in said annual request and acceptance; all other terms set forth

in this MOU shall continue in full force and effect. In the event COUNTY rejects all or any portion of said annual request, the then-existing type and level of staffing shall remain in full force and effect, as modified by the acceptable portion of said annual request, until such time that the parties reach agreement as to the rejected portion of said annual request.

C. <u>Payment Process.</u> COUNTY will send quarterly invoices to CITY for full payment within 30 days after CITY'S receipt of said invoice. CITY'S payment shall be made by check. A check shall be made payable to the order of, Siskiyou County Sheriff's Office and mailed to the 305 Butte St. Yreka CA 96097, attention: Tomi Jackson, unless otherwise directed in writing by COUNTY.

If such payment is not delivered to the COUNTY office within thirty (30) days of the respective due date, COUNTY is entitled to recover interest thereon at the rate of 1.5%, monthly, commencing thirty (30) days after the due date of the invoice and continue, monthly, until such time as the payment is delivered to the COUNTY described on said invoice.

3. Supplemental Law Enforcement Services

- A. <u>Overtime/Additional Services.</u> CITY costs for Supplemental Law Enforcement services, as defined in Exhibit "A," Section 3, will be billed in addition to the quarterly billing of the MOU.
 - 1. Natural Disasters Federal/State Relief: If in the event of a natural disaster, and such event qualifies for federal or state relief under emergency declaration provisions, COUNTY will apply for compensation for services associated with the event. Should CITY file for relief on behalf of COUNTY, CITY agrees to compensate COUNTY for the cost of additional services per this MOU.

B. Billing Rate / Maximum:

RATE: \$ 64.00 per hour per employee; not to exceed **\$20,000.00** (Twenty Thousand Dollars) per each fiscal year, with a minimum of three (3) hours on callouts, (Pursuant to Deputy Sheriff Memorandum of Understanding – MOU)

COUNTY and CITY agree to meet and discuss raising the annual overtime cap of \$20,000.00 if necessary. Additions to the \$20,000.00 overtime cap will be completed by addendum.

C. <u>Cost Tracking & Invoicing.</u> The actual additional costs related to providing supplemental law enforcement services will be tracked by the COUNTY.

4. Miscellaneous

- A. <u>Booking Fees:</u> CITY will <u>not</u> be responsible for the payment of booking fees to the COUNTY.
- B. <u>Third Party Reimbursements.</u> CITY may seek direct reimbursement of supplemental law enforcement services from a third party when applicable. An example of an applicable situation would be if CITY collected a fee or deposit from a film crew, pays the COUNTY for services provided, then charges the film crew for the expense from the deposit.
- C. <u>Other Law Enforcement Agencies.</u> The COUNTY makes no guarantees regarding the ability to negotiate services from other law enforcement agencies on behalf of the CITY.
- D. <u>Seizure Funds.</u> Federal and/or State forfeited funds distributed back to the Sheriff's Office stemming from cases within the incorporated areas of the City of DUNSMUIR shall be shared with the CITY in accordance with applicable State and/or Federal laws. The distribution of funds between the COUNTY and CITY shall be negotiated on a case-by-case basis through the Designated Representatives and by mutually agreed upon terms.

Exhibit "C" – Special Indemnification & Insurance Provisions

The purpose of Exhibit C is to address liability & Insurance issues.

1. Indemnification

- A. <u>Indemnification by CITY:</u> CITY shall indemnify, defend and hold COUNTY and COUNTY's agents, officers, and employees, harmless from and against all claims, damages, losses, causes of action and expenses, including attorney's fees, for any personal injury, bodily injury, loss of life or damage to property, <u>violation of any federal, state or municipal, ordinance or constitutional provisions</u>, including those circumstances where COUNTY enforces municipal ordinances that are deemed or declared unconstitutional or other cause which arises out, relates to or results from the "activities, or omissions, negligent or otherwise, under this MOU of CITY, and CITY'S officers, agents, and employees.
- B. <u>Indemnification by County.</u> Except as is provided in Paragraph 1(A) above, COUNTY shall indemnify, defend and hold CITY, and CITY'S agents, officers and employees, harmless from and against all claims, damages, losses, causes of action and expenses, including attorney's fees, for any personal injury, bodily injury, loss of life or damage to property, violation of an federal, state or municipal law, ordinance or constitutional provision, or other cause which arises under this MOU of COUNTY, and COUNTY'S officer, agents and employees.
- C. <u>No Agency.</u> Except as otherwise specified herein, for the purpose of this section, CITY shall not be deemed to be COUNTY'S agent and COUNTY shall not be deemed to be CITY'S agent.
- D. <u>Notification</u>. Each party shall give the other prompt notification when it first learns of an incident or occurrence covered, or likely to be covered under the terms of this section, as well as prompt notification if a claim is made or suit is brought against a party based on an incident or occurrence covered, or likely to be covered by the terms hereof.
- E. <u>Continuing Obligation</u>. To the extent that COUNTY has agreed to indemnify, defend and hold harmless CITY, its officers, agents and employees under this MOU, said obligations shall continue to exist during the term of this MOU and subsequent to this MOU for those acts or omissions giving rise to liability which occurred during this MOU. To the extent that CITY has agreed to indemnity, defend and hold harmless COUNTY, its officers, agents and employees under this MOU, said obligations shall continue to exist during the term of this MOU and subsequent to this MOU for those acts or omissions giving rise to liability which occurred during this MOU.
- F. <u>Insurance</u>. Either party may purchase commercial insurance to cover its exposure hereunder, in whole or in part.

2. **Insurance**

- A. <u>Workers' Compensation.</u> COUNTY warrants that it is permissibly self-insured for workers' compensation coverage and agrees that its employees providing services to CITY pursuant to this MOU will be covered by COUNTY'S self-insurance program for all injuries arising out of or occurring in the course and scope of their employment. COUNTY reserves the right at its sole discretion to purchase a workers' compensation policy at any time during the term of this MOU.
- B. <u>Liability.</u> COUNTY warrants that it is self-insured for liability and property damage claims up to its current self-insured retention and that it purchases excess liability insurance for claims in excess of that amount. CITY shall maintain insurance against claims for liability and property damage in an amount of not less than Two Million Dollars (\$2,000,000.00), combined single limit coverage. COUNTY shall be named as an additional insured on any liability policy of CITY. The parties shall maintain such insurance coverage in full force and effect during the term of this MOU.
- C. Proof of Insurance. Upon request by either party, the other party shall provide evidence of the above insurance coverage, listing the other party as an additional insured. Each such insurance coverage policy shall provide that such policy may not be cancelled or changed except changed at least thirty (30) days prior written notice to the other party. The foregoing insurance coverage shall not limit the indemnification obligations for the parties as set forth in the above listed indemnification, and the failure to maintain said coverage shall constitute a material breach of this MOU.

1ST ADDENDUM TO THE MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING & AGREEMENT TO PROVIDE LAW ENFORCEMENT SERVICES

THIS FIRST ADDENDUM is to that Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) entered into on June 18th, 2019 by and between the County of Siskiyou, Office of the Sheriff ("County") and City of Dunsmuir ("City") and is entered into on the date when it has been both approved by the Board and signed by all other parties to it.

WHEREAS, the MOU expired on June 30th, 2022 and services continued to be required after that date; and

WHEREAS, the parties desire to extend the term of the MOU;

WHEREAS, the cost of services to be provided under the MOU is expected to exceed the amount provided in the MOU; and

WHEREAS, the parties desire to increase the amount of compensation payable under the MOU.

WHEREAS, the County contacts listed in Section 1 and Section 2 of the MOU needs to be updated;

NOW THEREFORE, THE PARTIES MUTUALLY AGREE AS FOLLOWS:

- 1. Section 4.A., page 2 of the MOU, shall be amended to extend the term of the Contract through **June 30th**, **2023**.
- 2. Exhibit A-1, Section 3, page 1, shall be amended to add fiscal year 2022-2023.
- 3. Exhibit B, Section 1, page 1, add an additional total of Four Hundred Sixteen Thousand Dollars and No Cents (\$416,000.00), increasing the total compensation payable under the MOU to an amount not to exceed One Million Six Hundred Sixty Four Thousand Dollars and No Cents (\$1,664,000.00).
- 4. Designated County representative within Section 1, page 1 of the MOU: Jeremiah LaRue, Sheriff-Coroner (530) 842-8300
- County contacts for Notices within Section 2, page 1 of the MOU:
 Courtney Greenley, Administrative Services Manager: Contracts (530) 842-8326
 Elizabeth Johnson, Fiscal Technician: Billings (530) 842-8315

All other terms and conditions of the Contract shall remain in full force and effect.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, County and City have executed this first addendum to the MOU on the dates set forth below, each signatory represents that he/she has the authority to execute this agreement and to bind the Party on whose behalf his/her execution is made.

| | COUNTY OF SISKIYOU | | | |
|--|---|--|--|--|
| Date: 10/4/2022 | Brandon A. CMIS BRANDON A. CRISS, CHAIR Board of Supervisors County of Siskiyou State of California | | | |
| ATTEST: LAURA BYNUM Clerk, Board of Supervisors By: Deputy Deputy | | | | |
| | CITY: City of Dunsmuir | | | |
| Date: | 2 | | | |
| | Matthew Bryan, Mayor | | | |
| Date: | Colored | | | |
| | Dustin Rief, City Manager | | | |
| License No.: | | | | |
| (Licensed in accordance with an act provide | _ ling for the registration of contractors) | | | |
| Note to Contractor: For corporations, the contract must be signed by two officers. The first signature must be that of the chairman of the board, president or vice-president; the second signature must be that of the secretary, assistant secretary, chief financial officer or assistant treasurer. (Civ. Code, Sec. 1189 & 1190 and Corps. Code, Sec. 313.) | | | | |
| TAXPAYER I.D. | | | | |
| ACCOUNTING: Fund Organization Account A 1002 202010 551400 | activity Code (if applicable) | | | |
| Encumbrance number (if applicable) | | | | |
| If not to exceed, include amount not to exceed: \$1,664,000.00 | | | | |
| If needed for multi-year contracts, please incleeach fiscal year. | ude separate sheet with financial information for | | | |

Memorandum of Understanding

Agreement to Provide Law Enforcement Services

Between

County of Siskiyou

and

City of Dunsmuir

July 1, 2019 – through – June 30, 2022

Table of Contents

Face Page

Table of Contents

MOU (6 Pages – Including Signature Page + Accounting)

Exhibit "A" - Scope of Services (5 Pages)

Exhibit "A-1" - Staffing / Operations Plan (3 Pages)

Exhibit "A-2" - City "Police Ordinances (4 Pages)

Exhibit "B" - Payment Methodology (3 Pages)

Exhibit "C" - Special Indemnification & Insurance Provisions (2 Pages)

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING

FOR LAW ENFORCEMENT SERVICES TO THE CITY OF DUNSMUIR

BY THE SISKIYOU COUNTY SHERIFF'S OFFICE

THIS MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING, (MOU) is made by and between the County of Siskiyou, Office of the Sheriff, a political subdivision of the State of California (hereafter called COUNTY) and the City of Dunsmuir an incorporated city having its principal place of business at 5915 Dunsmuir Avenue, Dunsmuir CA 96025 (hereafter called CITY). Wherein COUNTY agrees to provide and CITY agrees to accept the services specified herein.

The CITY has requested COUNTY, through the Office of the Sheriff, to provide law enforcement services as specified in "Exhibit A" (Scope of Services) "Exhibit A-1," and "Exhibit A-2" pursuant to this MOU:

The COUNTY, through the Office of the Sheriff, has expressed willingness to provide law enforcement services pursuant to this MOU as authorized by California Government Code sections 6500 et seq. and 51300 et seq.

In consideration of the mutual covenants and conditions contained herein, the parties agree as follows:

1. **DESIGNATED REPRESENTATIVES.** The below listed persons have been designated as authorized representatives for this MOU:

COUNTY:

Captain, Karl Houtman -

(530) 842-8311

Siskiyou County Sheriff's Office, 305 Butte Street, Yreka CA 96097

CITY:

Randy Johnsen, City Manager - (530) 235-4822 ext. #103

City of Dunsmuir, 5915 Dunsmuir Ave., Dunsmuir, CA 96025

2. **NOTICES.** Any notice or consent required or permitted to be given under this MOU shall be given to the respective parties in writing, by first class mail, postage prepaid, or otherwise delivered as follows:

To COUNTY: Sheriff Jon E. Lopey, 305 Butte St., Yreka CA 96097

To CITY: Randy Johnsen, City Manager, 5915 Dunsmuir Ave., Dunsmuir, CA 96025

3. SCOPE OF SERVICES. COUNTY agrees to provide law enforcement services to CITY in accordance and/or as specified in "Exhibit A", "Exhibit A-1" and "Exhibit A-2" attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference. CITY shall compensate COUNTY in the amount indicated in "Exhibit B" attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference; payments shall be based on actuals quarterly. COUNTY shall invoice quarterly. Payments shall be made, in full, within thirty (30) days of invoice receipt.

4. TERM.

- A. <u>Basic Term.</u> The term of this MOU shall commence July 1, 2019, and continue through June 30, 2022, unless terminated sooner pursuant to item #12 in this MOU, or extended as described in item 4(B).
- **B**. Extended Term. The term of this MOU may be extended for successive periods of one (1) year if the legislative body of both parties determines to so extend the term and written notice of such renewal is given to the other party at least three (3) months prior to the expiration. Extended terms shall be referred to as First Extended, Second Extend Term, et cetera.
- C. <u>Appropriations Limitations:</u> CITY and COUNTY each acknowledge that annual budgetary appropriations in future years for payment and services hereunder are subject to the approval of their respective legislative bodies.
- 5. STANDARD OF PERFORMANCE. COUNTY represents that it has the skills and expertise necessary to perform the law enforcement services required under this MOU and that all persons employed in the performance of such services for the CITY shall be COUNTY employees. Other than the compensation hereinabove provided for, CITY shall not be called upon to assume any liability for the direct payment of salaries, wages, or other compensation to any COUNTY personnel performing services hereunder for CITY.
- 6. <u>INDEMNIFICATION AND INSURANCE</u>. CITY and COUNTY agree to defend, indemnify and save harmless the other party for the negligence of its officers, employees, and agents acting within the scope of this Agreement and to procure and maintain insurance in accordance with the provisions of "Exhibit C," attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference.
- 7. <u>OWNERSHIP OF EQUIPMENT</u>. COUNTY shall be the owner of all items incidental to the performance of this MOU. No transfer of ownership of equipment neither from COUNTY to the CITY nor from CITY to the COUNTY shall occur as a result of this MOU.
- **8.** <u>INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR</u>. It is expressly understood between the parties to this MOU that no employer/employee relationship is intended; the relationship of COUNTY to CITY is that of an independent contractor and CITY and COUNTY retain sole and independent liability for the actions of the employees of each.
- 9. <u>NON-DISCRIMINATION</u>. COUNTY hereby notifies CITY that COUNTY's policies prohibiting discrimination (2.1 et seq. Siskiyou County Personnel Policies) apply to this MOU and are incorporated herein by this reference with the same force and effect as if these policies were specifically set out herein and CITY agrees to comply with these same/referred policies.
- 10. NON-EXCLUSIVE AGREEMENT. CITY understand that this is not an exclusive agreement (MOU) and that COUNTY shall have the right to negotiate with and enter into MOU's, Contracts, Agreement, etc. with other Siskiyou County cities and/or other agencies to provide the same or similar services.
- 11. <u>ASSIGNMENT</u>. CITY shall not assign any of its rights nor transfer any of its obligations under this MOU without the prior written consent of COUNTY and any attempt to so assign or so transfer without consent shall be void and without legal effect and shall constitute grounds for termination.

12. TERMINATION.

- A. <u>By COUNTY</u>: COUNTY may, by written notice to CITY, terminate this MOU in whole or in part at any time, whether for the COUNTY's convenience or because of the failure of CITY to fulfill the obligations as set forth herein.
- 1. For Convenience. COUNTY may terminate this MOU upon ninety (90) days written notice. Upon the date of termination, COUNTY shall cease work and notify CITY as to the status of its performance.
- 2. For Cause. Should CITY default in the performance of this MOU or materially breach any of its provisions, COUNTY may, at COUNTY's sole option, terminate this MOU by written notice which shall be effective upon receipt by CITY.
- B. <u>By CITY:</u> CITY, may, by written notice to COUNTY, terminate this agreement in whole or in part at any time, whether for CITY's convenience or because of the failure of COUNTY to fulfill the obligations set forth herein.
- 1. For Convenience. CITY may terminate this MOU upon ninety (90) days written notice. COUNTY shall be entitled to payment for services rendered through the termination date.
- 2. For Cause. Should COUNTY fail to provide CITY all or any part of the services set forth in "Exhibit A", "Exhibit "A-1" and "Exhibit A-2" CITY may, at CITY's option, terminate this agreement by written notice, which shall be in effect upon receipt by COUNTY.

Notwithstanding any other payment provision of this MOU, CITY shall pay COUNTY for services performed to the date of termination.

- 13. <u>SECTION HEADINGS.</u> The headings of several sections, and any table of contents appended hereto, shall be solely for convenience of reference and shall not affect the meaning, construction, or effect hereof.
- SEVERABILITY. If any one or more of the provisions contained herein shall for any reason be held to be invalid, illegal of unenforceable in any respect, then such provision or provisions shall be deemed severable from the remaining provisions hereof, and such invalidity, illegality or unenforceability shall not affect any other provision hereof, and this MOU shall be construed as if such invalid, illegal, or unenforceable provision had never been contained herein.
- 15. **REMEDIES NOT EXCLUSIVE.** No remedy herein conferred upon or reserved to the CITY or the COUNTY is intended to be exclusive of any other remedy or remedies, and each and every such remedy, to the extent permitted by law, shall be cumulative and in addition to any other remedy given hereunder or now or hereafter existing at law or in equity or otherwise.
- **16. TIME IS OF THE ESSENCE.** Time is of the essence in this MOU and each covenant and term is a condition herein.
- 17. No delay or omission of COUNTY to exercise any right or power arising upon the occurrence of any event of default shall impair any such right or power or shall be construed to be a waiver of any such default or an acquiescence therein; and every power and

remedy given by this MOU to COUNTY shall be exercised from time to time and as often as may be deemed expedient in the sole discretion of COUNTY.

- 18. ENTIRE AGREEMENT/MOU AND AMENDMENT. In conjunction with the matters considered herein, this MOU contains the entire understanding and agreement of the parties and there have been no promises, representations, agreements, warranties or undertakings by any of the parties, either oral or written, of any character or nature hereafter binding except as set forth herein. This MOU may be altered, amended or modified only by an instrument in writing, executed by the parties to this MOU and by no other means. Each party waives its future claim, contest or assert that this MOU was modified, canceled, superseded, or changed by any oral agreements, course of conduct, waiver or estoppel.
- 19. <u>SUCCESSOR AND ASSIGNS.</u> All representatives, covenants and warranties set forth in this MOU, by or on behalf of, or for the benefit of any or all of the parties hereto, shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of such party, its successors and assigns.
- **20.** COMPLIANCE WITH LAW. CITY and COUNTY shall, at the sole cost and expense of each entity, comply with all County, State, and Federal ordinances, regulations and/or statutes now in force or which may hereafter be in force with regard to the MOU. The judgment of any court of competent jurisdiction, or the admission of CITY or COUNTY in any action or proceeding against either, whether either party thereto or not, that CITY or COUNTY has violated any such ordinance, regulation and/or statue, shall be conclusive of the fact as between CITY and COUNTY.
- **21.** CALIFORNIA LAW. This MOU shall be governed by the laws of the State of California.
- **EXECUTION OF COUNTERPARTS.** This MOU may be executed in any number of counterparts and each of such counterparts shall for all purposes be deemed to be an original; and all such counterparts, or as many of them as the parties shall preserve undestroyed, shall together constitute one and the same instrument.
- **AUTHORITY.** All parties to this MOU warrant and represent that they have the power and authority to enter into this agreement in the names, titles and capacities herein state and on behalf of any entities, persons, or firms, represented or purported to be represented by such entity (ies), person(s), or firm(s) and that all formal requirements necessary or required by and state and/or federal law in order to enter into this MOU have been fully complied with. Furthermore, by entering into this MOU, CITY hereby warrants that it shall not have breached the terms or conditions of any other contract or agreement to which CITY is obligated, which breach would have a material effect hereon.
- **24. PRECEDENCE.** In the event of conflict between the provisions contained in the numbered section of this MOU and the provisions contained in the Exhibits shall prevail over those in the numbered sections. In the event of conflict between the provisions contained in the numbered sections of this MOU, "Exhibit A," "Exhibit A-1" and subsequent amendments, the most current MOU and/or Amendment shall prevail over the provisions, Exhibits, and/or prior Amendments.

//

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, County and Contractor have executed this agreement on the dates set forth below, each signatory represents that he/she has the authority to execute this agreement and to bind the Party on whose behalf his/her execution is made.

COUNTY OF SISKIYOU

| Date: 7/9/19 | Brandon A. Crus BRANDON A. CRISS, CHAIR Board of Supervisors County of Siskiyou State of California | |
|--|---|--|
| ATTEST: LAURA BYNUM Clerk, Board of Supervisors By: | | |
| Date: 6/11/2019 | JULIANA LUCCHESI, MAYOR | |
| Date: 6-11-2019 | RANDY JOHNSEN, CITY MANAGER | |
| License No.: (Licensed in accordance with an act providing for | or the registration of contractors) | |
| Note to Contractor: For corporations, the contract must be signed by two officers. The first signature must be that of the chairman of the board, president or vice-president; the second signature must be that of the secretary, assistant secretary, chief financial officer or assistant treasurer. (Civ. Code, Sec. 1189 & 1190 and Corps. Code, Sec. 313.) | | |
| TAXPAYER I.D | | |
| ACCOUNTING: Fund Organization Account Activity Code 1002 202010 551400 | e (if applicable) | |
| Encumbrance number (if applicable) | | |
| If not to exceed, include amount not to exceed: \$1,248,000.00 (One Million Two Hundred Forty Eight Thousand and no cents) | | |

information for each fiscal year.

If needed for multi-year contracts, please include separate sheet with financial

| FY 19/20 1002-202010-551400 | NTE \$416,000.00 |
|-----------------------------|------------------|
| FY 20/21 1002-202010-551400 | NTE \$416,000.00 |
| FY 21/22 1002-202010-551400 | NTE \$416,000.00 |

Exhibit "A" – Scope of Services

1. Delivery of Services.

The COUNTY, through the Office of the Sheriff, shall deliver General Law Enforcement Services within the incorporated limits of the City of DUNSMUIR according to the terms and conditions set forth herein. It is the mission of the Sheriff's Office to provide a high level of professional excellence; respond to calls for service promptly; protect lives and property to the best of its ability; initiate and maintain crime prevention programs and apprehend criminal offenders.

2. General Law Enforcement Services

- A. <u>General Services.</u> The COUNTY agrees to provide general law enforcement services for CITY, as specified herein, which includes, police patrol; detective units and investigations; all auxiliary and technical services; direct supervision, support, and administrative functions; Dispatch; general traffic enforcement, accident investigation, and parking violation enforcement. Services may also include license inspection and enforcement, and any other necessary services in the field of public safety. Services provided shall not include animal control functions or enforcement of animal control ordinances.
 - 1. <u>Labor, Equipment and Materials.</u> COUNTY shall furnish and supply all necessary labor, supervision, equipment, communication facilities, and supplies necessary to perform all duties and functions to maintain the level of service to be rendered hereunder. Notwithstanding anything contained herein, in all instances where special supplies, stationary, notices, forms and the like must be issued in the name of CITY, the same shall be supplied by CITY at CITY'S cost and expense.
 - 2. <u>Prosecution of Offenses.</u> The CITY and COUNTY shall continue their existing practice regarding prosecution of offenses, with CITY responsible for prosecution and/or administering parking citations and City Ordinances, and COUNTY, through the County's District Attorney's Office, is responsible for the prosecution of all other offenses. There shall be no cost effect on the parties under this Section.
 - 3. <u>Custody and Coroner Functions.</u> Under current law, conventional custody and Coroner functions are provided by the COUNTY's obligation and expense throughout the County of Siskiyou regardless of incorporated or unincorporated boundaries. Coroner functions include toxicology lab test. Therefore, the CITY will not be involved with the cost of Custody or Coroner services.

B. Level of Service.

1. <u>COUNTY Recommendation.</u> The level of service as per Exhibit A-1, workplace and/or geographical boundaries for law enforcement services to the CITY will be recommended by the COUNTY in advance of the application period(s) of

implementation, and no less than annually thereafter. The level of service refers to the sum of the direct staffing plan, support functions, equipment, capital structures, major assets, services, supplies, and other incidental costs attributable to the provisions of basic law enforcement services with the then current geographic boundaries of the City of DUNSMUIR. The direct staffing plan is incorporated into this Agreement as Exhibit A-1 and will be reviewed at least annually for the applicable time period. In consultation with the CITY, the CITY may enhance the level of law enforcement services as defined under Exhibit "B," Section 3. "Supplemental Law Enforcement Services." Under no circumstance will existing service levels be reduced unless upon mutual agreement by CITY and COUNTY.

COUNTY and CITY may participate in CITY'S monthly Council meeting and discuss "Public Safety issues." These meetings may be held monthly or more frequently as required. This meeting may consist of at least the following: CITY Clerk or his/her designee, two CITY Council Members, CITY Code Enforcement or his/her designee, COUNTY Sheriff's Office Supervisor or his/her designee. The purpose of this meeting will facilitate timely review and discussion of enforcement issues and other public safety concerns.

- 2. <u>No CITY Modification.</u> In the event the CITY does not wish to modify the then-existing type or level of staffing provided under the terms of this MOU, no action need be taken by CITY or COUNTY and the then existing type or level of staffing shall continue unchanged until a written request is made pursuant to this Section or otherwise modified pursuant to the terms of this MOU.
- 3. <u>Cost Computation.</u> COUNTY'S computation of costs shall be consistent with the provisions referred to in Exhibit B. Any disputes regarding the computation of costs under this Section shall be resolved by mutual agreement by both parties. The CITY shall receive written notice annually in September of any anticipated increases to this MOU as to provide time for preliminary budget creation with the specific type and level of staffing and assess budgetary impacts for the succeeding year.
- C. <u>Specialized Law Enforcement Functions</u>. Specialized law enforcement functions, such as: K-9; Search & Rescue (SAR); Hostage Negotiations; Special Response Team (SWAT/SRT); Dive Team; Hazardous Devices Team; Professional Standards (Internal Affairs Investigations); Major Crimes Investigations; Forensic Evidence Collection/Processing; Special Investigations Unit (Intelligence Gathering); Crime/Gang Intelligence Unit; and DARE, Neighborhood Watch, and other Crime Prevention Program administration may also be provided within the City Limits as needed.
- D. <u>Service Limitations of COUNTY.</u> All references to General Law Enforcement Services contained in this MOU are references only to services that shall be delivered under the terms of this MOU.

3. Supplemental Law Enforcement Services

A. Additional Levels of Service.

- 1. <u>Definition.</u> Additional Level(s) of Service refers to supplemental or enhancements to law enforcement services not included in, "General Law Enforcement Services," as defined in Section #2 above. CITY recognizes that additional levels of service such as, but not limited to: additional security for special events, responses to natural disasters, CITY imposed enterprises, etc. may exceed previously defined general law enforcement services. These are examples of planned and/or unplanned events usually requiring supplemental, short-term law enforcement services.
- 2. <u>Response.</u> COUNTY will respond with additional levels of law enforcement service determined by the COUNTY.
- 3. City Cost. The COUNTY will provide additional levels of law enforcement service as described in Section 3(A)(1) at regular rate to the CITY if and when it is capable of doing so. This will first be accomplished using existing staff during regular scheduled work hours if/when such services would not unreasonably interfere with the Sheriff Office's general law enforcement services to the unincorporated portions of the County and/or by requesting/using neighboring law enforcement service agencies through mutual aid. The procedures set forth herein are designed to keep CITY'S costs to a minimum and are consistent with current practices. Any additional services requiring overtime will be at the overtime rate specified in Exhibit "B," Section 3(B).

4. Personnel Management.

A. <u>Hiring, Training and Discipline of Staff.</u> The hiring, training, discipline and/or control of all Sheriff's Office personnel employed under this MOU shall remain under the appropriate chain-of-command within the department. CITY may provide input in the assignment and transfer of COUNTY Sheriff's Office personnel; however, the Sheriff has the ultimate authority on the assignments of Sheriff's Office personnel.

COUNTY Sheriff shall appoint and/or designate a Supervisor, as CITY Police Chief. CITY may provide input to the Sheriff for his consideration for CITY Police Chief and may also provide input on the CITY Police Chief evaluations. All persons employed in the performance of services and functions for CITY pursuant to this MOU shall be COUNTY employees.

B. <u>Exclusive Authority.</u> Subject to the terms of this MOU, the Sheriff shall retain exclusive authority over the activities of his/her personnel. The planning, organization, scheduling, direction, supervision, standards of performance and discipline of Sheriff's personnel, and all other related matters incidental to the delivery of General Law

Enforcement Services to the CITY shall be as determined by the Sheriff. Nothing herein shall be deemed to limit the Sheriff's authority to move, transfer and/or discipline Sheriff's Office personnel as the Sheriff's discretion deems appropriate.

C. <u>City Recommendations/Input.</u> CITY may provide input and recommendations on the assignment and transfer of personnel as a consequence of services and functions performed under this MOU, and such recommendations shall be considered in good faith by the Sheriff in determining the appropriate course of action, if any. CITY will also be allowed to provide information to the CITY Police Chief in his/her preparation of COUNTY personnel providing services under this MOU.

CITY may provide input based on general citizen concerns, setting performance measures, and identify goals and objectives through direct communication based on open and honest dialogue between CITY and COUNTY. CITY Police Chief will attend CITY Public Safety meetings and CITY Council meetings to facilitate this function.

- D. <u>Employee Pay Issues.</u> City shall not assume any liability for the direct payment of any salaries, wages, or other compensation to any COUNTY personnel performing services hereunder for CITY. Except as otherwise specified herein, CITY shall not be liable for Workers' Compensation claims or indemnity to any COUNTY employee for injury or sickness arising out of his or her employment with the COUNTY. Except as otherwise provided herein, no person employed by COUNTY hereunder shall have any rights to pension, civil service, or other status or right from CITY by virtue of this MOU; and no CITY employee shall have any rights to pension, civil service or other status or right from the COUNTY by virtue of this MOU.
- E. <u>Orientation/Training.</u> Personnel assigned to CITY pursuant to the terms of the MOU shall receive appropriate orientation on procedures, special characteristics, and needs of CITY. CITY may provide guidance on this orientation.

5. Enforcement of State and Municipal Laws.

The Sheriff's Office shall enforce the statutes of the State of California and the municipal polices ordinances of the City of DUNSMUIR. The enforcement of such municipal police ordinances shall be in connection with the performance of the Sheriff Office's law enforcement functions within the boundaries of the City of DUNSMUIR.

6. Mutual Cooperation.

To facilitate the delivery of services under this MOU, COUNTY shall have full cooperation and assistance from CITY, its officers, agents and employees and the CITY shall have full cooperation and assistance from COUNTY, its officers, agents and employees. County Sheriff shall give prompt consideration and make every effort to comply with all requests regarding the delivery of law enforcement services.

7. Maintenance of Records

COUNTY shall keep reasonably itemized and detailed records and reports as required by law, grants and/or generally accepted accounting principles on behalf of CITY. Each COUNTY employee performing services for CITY shall record activities attributed to the City of DUNSMUIR. CITY understands and accepts that various records may be destroyed after specific time periods have passed and thus may be unavailable.

8. Monthly and Annual Reports.

Within fifteen (15) days after the end of each calendar month, COUNTY shall provide CITY a monthly report of law enforcement service statistics. COUNTY further shall provide CITY an "annual report" due to the CITY February 1ST of each following year and placed on the next available City Council Agenda in February. COUNTY and CITY may work together on modifying the format and content of these reports as needed and when practical.

Exhibit "A-1" – Staffing / Operations Plan

1. General Law Enforcement Services: (Minimum Level of Staffing)

The COUNTY will provide a total of 5,280 man hours annually; which includes supervision; (Department Supervisor/CITY Police Chief). The Supervisor/Sergeant or Corporal, and other department administration, will provide administrative duties and shift coverage. (Refer to section 5B)

2. Man Hours: (Minimum Level)

Total = 5,280 (Annual -5,280 hours of coverage)

3. Cost:

Fiscal Year 2019-2020 = NTE § 396,000.00 + overtime as specified in Exhibit "B," Section 3.

Fiscal Year 2020-2021 = NTE \$ 396,000.00 + overtime as specified in Exhibit "B," Section 3.

Fiscal Year 2021-2022 = NTE **§ 396,000.00** + overtime as specified in Exhibit "B," Section 3.

4. Facility:

A. <u>Assignment/Location</u>: All personnel assigned to provide services to CITY under this MOU will work from the main Sheriff's Substation in DUNSMUIR or be dispatched from the closest Sheriff's Office/Substation.

5. Scheduling:

- A. <u>Span of Coverage</u>: The CITY Police Chief (Sergeant or Corporal/Supervisor) will schedule personnel to minimize any lapse of service and the necessity for having to call-out personnel.
- B. <u>Miscellaneous Deployment:</u> The CITY Police Chief and/or COUNTY will have discretion to schedule personnel as necessary to best address crime suppression, officer and public safety, and other activities as required. CITY may also provide input in areas requiring additional deployment.
- C. <u>Deployment</u>: As described in item #4, section "C," second paragraph in "Exhibit A," CITY Police Chief will attend CITY "Public Safety Meetings," (which should only

involve one and no more than two City Council Member as designated by the CITY COUNCIL), and monthly CITY Council Meetings as required, CITY to provide input on public safety and deployment, i.e., community awareness programs, school patrols, parolee and sex offender checks, park and other security checks, special events, etc.

D. Call Type:

- 1. Priority 1: In-progress call with the possibility of harm to people and/or property. Examples include: Domestic Disturbances, burglaries in progress, fighting, assaults/batteries, etc. Priority 1 calls would require a call-out if no personnel were on-duty and/or available to respond.
- 2. Priority 2: Urgent calls requiring a response, but not an emergency (threat to life or property). Examples include: Domestic or other disturbances where the parties are separated; crimes where there is potential of recurrence, escalation, or loss of evidence. Priority 2 calls may require a call-out if no personnel were onduty and/or available.
- 3. Priority 3: Non-urgent calls where there is no risk to life or property, no risk of losing evidence, typically non-criminal incidents. Priority 3 calls will not usually require a call-out and will be referred to the first available personnel assigned to DUNSMUIR.
- E. <u>Call-outs/Extended Shifts/Additional Over-time</u>: CITY recognizes that there are circumstances and functions associated with providing law enforcement services to the CITY that require personnel to work beyond designated shifts, such as call-outs during non-covered times; extended shifts to transport prisoners, writing in-custody crime reports, attending court appearances and hearings related to CITY calls/business; extended emergency calls and/or Priority 1 and Priority 2 calls as describe in Section D (above); court appearances, etc.
 - 1. Additional Personnel/Assistance: Priority 1 and Priority 2 calls may require a minimum of two deputies/officers.

COUNTY agrees to implement procedures to minimize overtime and attempt to use existing staff during regular scheduled work hours if/when such services would not unreasonably interfere with the Sheriff Office's general law enforcement services to the unincorporated portions of the County; by requesting/using neighboring law enforcement service agencies through mutual aid. Call-outs will be made at the discretion of COUNTY based on priority, urgency, and consistent with current practices.

F. Billing:

- 1. General Billing: Over-time for CITY related calls or law enforcement services will be billed to CITY quarterly, in addition to General Law Enforcement Services as specified in "Exhibit B." The billing will include the date, time of call, type of call, (i.e. Disturbance, Domestic Dispute, Assault & Battery, Report Writing, Prisoner Transport, etc.), activity, and a case number if applicable, for identification, tracking, and future deployment analysis.
- 2. Other Law Enforcement Agencies: The COUNTY makes no guarantees regarding the ability to negotiate services from other law enforcement agencies on behalf of the CITY.

6. Calls for Service Outside of CITY LIMITS:

- A. <u>Call-Type:</u> CITY and COUNTY agree that personnel assigned to work during CITY designated shifts may be dispatched to leave CITY limits. This includes, but is not limited to the following circumstances:
 - 1. Investigation of CITY related crimes and incidents
 - 2. Security Check(s) of/on CITY property, e.g. Airport
 - 3. Transportation of prisoner(s)
 - 4. Priority 1 calls
 - 5. Priority 2 calls
 - 6. Court appearances
 - 7. Training
 - 8. Collateral Assignments
- B. <u>Coverage</u>: The COUNTY will attempt to minimize use and the duration of personnel assigned to CITY for calls and/or assignments. COUNTY will also attempt to provide coverage to CITY during these incidents. Coverage may include placing personnel on telephonic stand-by, assigning other on-duty personnel to cover CITY, etc.
- C. <u>In-kind Services:</u> COUNTY will provide in kind services, as described herein, i.e., back-up and/or primary for Priority 1 and Priority 2 Calls in CITY limits, additional patrol, etc.
- D. <u>Authorization:</u> Calls and/or circumstances outside of the greater Dunsmuir area requiring the use of personnel assigned to CITY will require the authorization of COUNTY Duty Commander, Watch Commander or Officer-in-Charge (OIC). The COUNTY Commander will see that coverage is maintained as necessary.

EXHIBIT "A-2"

City of Dunsmuir Municipal Codes enforced by SCSO

10.04.010 PARKING RESTRICTIONS:

- A- Red Zones
- **B- Yellow Zones**
- C (1)(2)- White Zones
- **D- Green Zones**
- E- Blue Zones
- F- Seventy Two (72) hour Zones
- G- No Parking Zones
- G(1)- On either side of any street between the projected property lines of any public walk, public step, street or thoroughfare terminating at such street, when such area is indicated by appropriate signs or by red paint upon the curb surface.
- G(2)- In any area where the public works director determines that the parking or stopping of a vehicle would constitute a traffic hazard, or would endanger life or property, when such area is indicated by appropriate signs or red paint upon the curb surface.
- G(3)- In any area established by resolution of the council as a no parking area, when such area is indicated by appropriate signs or by red paint upon the curb surface.
- G(4)- Upon, along or across any railway track in such manner as to hinder, delay or obstruct the movement of any car traveling upon such track.
- G(5)- In any area where the parking or stopping of any vehicle would constitute a traffic hazard or would endanger life or property.
- G(6)- (abbv) On any street or highway where the use of such a street or highway or a portion thereof is necessary for cleaning, repair or construction.
- G(7)- At any place within twenty(20) feet of a crosswalk at an intersection in any business district when such place is indicated by appropriate signs or by red paint upon the curb surface except at a bus stop at a designated bus stop.

G(8)- (abbv)In three-hour parking zones from four a.m. to six a.m. on Tuesdays and Fridays, except holidays, or time reserved for street sweeping.

Dunsmuir Municipal Codes enforced by SCSO

10.04.010 PARKING RESTRICTIONS:

- H- Parking on grades in excess of 3% without blocking wheels of said vehicle by turning them against the curb.
- I- Parking for advertising
- J- Repairs on street
- K- Snow parking
- L- 12 hour maximum parking in city lot.

10.08.010 PARKING

- A- 2 Hour Zones
- D- 3 Hour Zones

10.24.020 OPERATION RESTRICTIONS IN THE BUSINESS DISTRICT

- A- Riding on sidewalk, no person shall ride a bicycle upon any sidewalk or walkway within the city.
- B- Passengers. No person shall ride any bicycle or toy vehicle upon any public right-of-way while carrying a passenger unless such bicycle or toy vehicle has been specifically built to carry such a passenger.
- F- Parking. No person shall park any bicycle or toy vehicle upon any public right-of-way so as to in any way present an obstruction or a hazard to any pedestrian, traffic, vehicle or property.
- H- Toy Vehicles on Business District Streets. No person shall ride a toy vehicle within the business district of Dunsmuir on any roadway.

11.08.080 Operation of Vehicles, Bicycle or Skateboards-prohibited acts.

A-Fail to comply with all applicable provisions of the vehicle code of the State of California.

B- Fail to obey all Sheriff's Officers, park or city employees who are hereinafter instructed to direct traffic whenever and wherever needed in accordance with the provision of these

regulation and such supplementary regulation as may be issued subsequently by the district or City Administrator.

Dunsmuir Municipal Codes enforced by SCSO

11.08.080 Operation of Vehicles, Bicycle or Skateboards-prohibited acts.

- C- Fail to observe all traffic signs indicating speed, direction, caution, stopping, or parking and all others posted for proper control and to safeguard life and property.
- D- Ride or drive a vehicle in at a rate of speed exceeding (10) ten miles per hour.
- E- Operate a vehicle in an area other than park roads and parking areas, nor park a vehicle in other than a designated roadway temporary parking area without written permission from the district or City Administrator.
- F- Ride or operate any skateboard or toy vehicle in any city park (See Section 10.24.020)

9.04.010 Areas where Loitering for unlawful purposes is prohibited.

- 1- Dunsmuir Avenue extending from the north side of Spruce Street to the South side of Oak Street.
- 2- The municipal parking lot on the East side of Dunsmuir Avenue lying to the North of Spruce Street.
- 3- Pine Street extending from the West side of Casle Avenue to the East side of Sacramento Avenue.
- 4- Sacramento Avenue extending from the North side of Willow Street to the South side of Oak Street.
- 5- The City Park facility located at 4835 Dunsmuir Ave.

9.04.020 LOITERING FOR UNLAWFUL PURPOSES

Within the areas designated in Section 9.04.010. It is unlawful for any person to loiter for the purpose of engaging in any of the unlawful acts enumerated in Section 9.04.030.

9.12.020 Curfew-Minors. A- (abbv)lt shall be unlawful for any person under the age of (18) eighteen years to loiter, wander, stroll, or play in or upon the public streets, highways, roads, alleys, parks, playgrounds or other public grounds, public place and public buildings, vacant lots or other unsupervised place between the hours of 10:00 p.m. and 5:00 a.m. of the following

day. On Friday's and Saturday's evenings the curfew shall apply only from 12:00 midnight to 5:00 a.m. the following day.

Dunsmuir Municipal Codes enforced by SCSO

9.12.020 Curfew-Minors.

B- Every parent, guardian or other person having legal care, custody or control of any person under the age (18) years who permits such person to violate the provisions of this chapter is guilty of an infraction.

9.12.040 Drinking on streets, highways, sidewalks or alleys.

A- No person shall drink any beer, wine or any other intoxicating beverage, while said person is on any street, highway, sidewalk or alley, within the city limits of the city.

B- The only exception to this section shall be within an enclosure, during an officially proclaimed city celebration, and shall be limited to beer and/or wine, served or sold under a liquor license, which must be approved by the city council.

*This list of CITY Ordinances may not be inclusive as the CITY and COUNTY may determine additional ordinances will be enforced and determined to be "Public Safety Ordinances."

g:\share\sheriff\city mou's\Dunsmuir - mou exhibit "A-2" (LE Services - final 9_28_15).doc

Exhibit "B" – Payment Methodology

The purpose of Exhibit B is to address contract fiscal issues.

1. General Compensation

In consideration for the services to be performed by COUNTY, CITY agrees to pay COUNTY in proportion to services satisfactorily performed as specified in Exhibit "A-1," Section 3, the not to exceed amount of (Three Hundred Ninety-Six Thousand Dollars and no/100's) \$396,000.00 annually for General Law Enforcement Services detailed in Exhibit "A," Section 2. An additional amount not to exceed (Twenty Thousand and no/100) \$20,000.00 annually for Supplemental Law Enforcement Services as detailed in Exhibit "A," Section 3. This results in a total not exceed amount of (Four Hundred Sixteen Thousand Dollars and no/100's) \$416,000.00, per fiscal year.

Total costs for services performed will be based on actual time worked. The COUNTY will use an Indirect Cost Rate Proposal (ICRP) rate that includes direct and indirect costs. The ICRP is developed using OMB (the United States Office of Management and Budgets) guidelines. The rate is calculated annually in September by the COUNTY Auditor-Controller in conjunction with the Siskiyou County Sheriff. This is the rate that will be used each fiscal year.

2. Annual Recomputation of Compensation

- A. Recomputation of General Law Enforcement Services. Except as otherwise specified hereafter, the total amount charged for General Law Enforcement Services as defined in Exhibit A-1(3) is agreed upon by both parties.
- B. Material Changes to Service Level. In the event that the CITY desires to modify then-existing type or level of staffing provided under the terms of this MOU, in addition to other procedures set forth in this agreement, the CITY will make a written request to the COUNTY for changes to be applied to the succeeding fiscal year. The CITY'S request shall detail the specific type and level of staffing the CITY desires, with the CITY acknowledging that the costs of such services may impact the total, negotiated amount for the relevant fiscal year. COUNTY shall review said annual request within thirty (30) days of COUNTY'S receipt thereof and acknowledge acceptance or rejection by letter to the CITY'S Designate Representative.

COUNTY reserves the right and responsibility to maintain a minimum advisable level of service throughout the unincorporated and contract areas. Upon notice from COUNTY of acceptance or partial acceptance of said annual request, and the cost of providing the type or level of staffing therein agreed upon, the parties shall prepare and execute a written amendment to this MOU as to the terms and conditions set forth in said annual request and acceptance; all other terms set forth

in this MOU shall continue in full force and effect. In the event COUNTY rejects all or any portion of said annual request, the then-existing type and level of staffing shall remain in full force and effect, as modified by the acceptable portion of said annual request, until such time that the parties reach agreement as to the rejected portion of said annual request.

C. <u>Payment Process.</u> COUNTY will send quarterly invoices to CITY for full payment within 30 days after CITY'S receipt of said invoice. CITY'S payment shall be made by check. A check shall be made payable to the order of, Siskiyou County Sheriff's Office and mailed to the 305 Butte St. Yreka CA 96097, attention: Tomi Jackson, unless otherwise directed in writing by COUNTY.

If such payment is not delivered to the COUNTY office within thirty (30) days of the respective due date, COUNTY is entitled to recover interest thereon at the rate of 1.5%, monthly, commencing thirty (30) days after the due date of the invoice and continue, monthly, until such time as the payment is delivered to the COUNTY described on said invoice.

3. Supplemental Law Enforcement Services

- A. <u>Overtime/Additional Services.</u> CITY costs for Supplemental Law Enforcement services, as defined in Exhibit "A," Section 3, will be billed in addition to the quarterly billing of the MOU.
 - 1. Natural Disasters Federal/State Relief: If in the event of a natural disaster, and such event qualifies for federal or state relief under emergency declaration provisions, COUNTY will apply for compensation for services associated with the event. Should CITY file for relief on behalf of COUNTY, CITY agrees to compensate COUNTY for the cost of additional services per this MOU.

B. Billing Rate / Maximum:

RATE: \$ 64.00 per hour per employee; not to exceed **\$20,000.00** (Twenty Thousand Dollars) per each fiscal year, with a minimum of three (3) hours on callouts, (Pursuant to Deputy Sheriff Memorandum of Understanding – MOU)

COUNTY and CITY agree to meet and discuss raising the annual overtime cap of \$20,000.00 if necessary. Additions to the \$20,000.00 overtime cap will be completed by addendum.

C. <u>Cost Tracking & Invoicing.</u> The actual additional costs related to providing supplemental law enforcement services will be tracked by the COUNTY.

4. Miscellaneous

- A. <u>Booking Fees:</u> CITY will <u>not</u> be responsible for the payment of booking fees to the COUNTY.
- B. <u>Third Party Reimbursements.</u> CITY may seek direct reimbursement of supplemental law enforcement services from a third party when applicable. An example of an applicable situation would be if CITY collected a fee or deposit from a film crew, pays the COUNTY for services provided, then charges the film crew for the expense from the deposit.
- C. <u>Other Law Enforcement Agencies.</u> The COUNTY makes no guarantees regarding the ability to negotiate services from other law enforcement agencies on behalf of the CITY.
- D. <u>Seizure Funds.</u> Federal and/or State forfeited funds distributed back to the Sheriff's Office stemming from cases within the incorporated areas of the City of DUNSMUIR shall be shared with the CITY in accordance with applicable State and/or Federal laws. The distribution of funds between the COUNTY and CITY shall be negotiated on a case-by-case basis through the Designated Representatives and by mutually agreed upon terms.

Exhibit "C" – Special Indemnification & Insurance Provisions

The purpose of Exhibit C is to address liability & Insurance issues.

1. Indemnification

- A. <u>Indemnification by CITY:</u> CITY shall indemnify, defend and hold COUNTY and COUNTY's agents, officers, and employees, harmless from and against all claims, damages, losses, causes of action and expenses, including attorney's fees, for any personal injury, bodily injury, loss of life or damage to property, <u>violation of any federal, state or municipal, ordinance or constitutional provisions</u>, including those circumstances where COUNTY enforces municipal ordinances that are deemed or declared unconstitutional or other cause which arises out, relates to or results from the "activities, or omissions, negligent or otherwise, under this MOU of CITY, and CITY'S officers, agents, and employees.
- B. <u>Indemnification by County.</u> Except as is provided in Paragraph 1(A) above, COUNTY shall indemnify, defend and hold CITY, and CITY'S agents, officers and employees, harmless from and against all claims, damages, losses, causes of action and expenses, including attorney's fees, for any personal injury, bodily injury, loss of life or damage to property, violation of an federal, state or municipal law, ordinance or constitutional provision, or other cause which arises under this MOU of COUNTY, and COUNTY'S officer, agents and employees.
- C. <u>No Agency.</u> Except as otherwise specified herein, for the purpose of this section, CITY shall not be deemed to be COUNTY'S agent and COUNTY shall not be deemed to be CITY'S agent.
- D. <u>Notification</u>. Each party shall give the other prompt notification when it first learns of an incident or occurrence covered, or likely to be covered under the terms of this section, as well as prompt notification if a claim is made or suit is brought against a party based on an incident or occurrence covered, or likely to be covered by the terms hereof.
- E. <u>Continuing Obligation</u>. To the extent that COUNTY has agreed to indemnify, defend and hold harmless CITY, its officers, agents and employees under this MOU, said obligations shall continue to exist during the term of this MOU and subsequent to this MOU for those acts or omissions giving rise to liability which occurred during this MOU. To the extent that CITY has agreed to indemnity, defend and hold harmless COUNTY, its officers, agents and employees under this MOU, said obligations shall continue to exist during the term of this MOU and subsequent to this MOU for those acts or omissions giving rise to liability which occurred during this MOU.
- F. <u>Insurance</u>. Either party may purchase commercial insurance to cover its exposure hereunder, in whole or in part.

2. **Insurance**

- A. <u>Workers' Compensation.</u> COUNTY warrants that it is permissibly self-insured for workers' compensation coverage and agrees that its employees providing services to CITY pursuant to this MOU will be covered by COUNTY'S self-insurance program for all injuries arising out of or occurring in the course and scope of their employment. COUNTY reserves the right at its sole discretion to purchase a workers' compensation policy at any time during the term of this MOU.
- B. <u>Liability.</u> COUNTY warrants that it is self-insured for liability and property damage claims up to its current self-insured retention and that it purchases excess liability insurance for claims in excess of that amount. CITY shall maintain insurance against claims for liability and property damage in an amount of not less than Two Million Dollars (\$2,000,000.00), combined single limit coverage. COUNTY shall be named as an additional insured on any liability policy of CITY. The parties shall maintain such insurance coverage in full force and effect during the term of this MOU.
- C. Proof of Insurance. Upon request by either party, the other party shall provide evidence of the above insurance coverage, listing the other party as an additional insured. Each such insurance coverage policy shall provide that such policy may not be cancelled or changed except changed at least thirty (30) days prior written notice to the other party. The foregoing insurance coverage shall not limit the indemnification obligations for the parties as set forth in the above listed indemnification, and the failure to maintain said coverage shall constitute a material breach of this MOU.